The assistant legislative clerk proceeded to call the roll.

Mr. LOTT. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the order for the quorum call be rescinded.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

#### THE DEATH OF DAN MANGEOT

Mr. FORD. Mr. President, millions of people watch the Kentucky Derby because it is a spectacular moment of chance.

When the 123rd Run for the Roses takes place May 3, that's what the spectators will see—a riveting 2 minutes when anything can happen. What they won't see are the thousands of small details that go into making that moment one that goes down in sport's history

While thousands of people work to make the Kentucky Derby and the festival events a success, Kentuckians know that for the past 17 years one man has stood out in his commitment and drive to nailing down every last derby festival detail.

That man was Dan Mangeot, the Kentucky Derby Festival's long-time president. He died in February, leaving behind a legacy and equally important, many, many devoted friends and colleagues.

Described by some as a "legend" and by others as a "father figure," Dan did the impossible. He took a legendary event and somehow made it even better

Under his management, attendance at derby festival events doubled to 1.5 million, while the economic impact on the community grew from \$17 million to \$53 million.

When Dan decided to focus on something, the outcome was inevitably a huge success. Whether it was selling more derby pins—going from a few thousand a year to 600,000 a year—or instituting a derby festival poster—a regular award winner—he knew how to deliver.

But Dan was about more than ringing up financial successes. He knew how to create a sense of community ownership in an event. Every year the entire community not only had a sense of pride in the festival activities surrounding the derby, but a stake in seeing them succeed.

Dan couldn't imagine doing things differently. Community ownership translated into a board of directors truly representative of Louisville's diversity. And when it came to awarding contracts, he worked to ensure that minority-owned firms weren't shut out.

It's true the derby is about the fastest horses in the world. But for Kentuckians it's also about showing the world the Commonwealth at her finest.

And thanks to Dan that's what the world saw.

Mr. President, let me close by expressing my deepest thanks to Dan's family for sharing such a great man with us. I know I speak for all Ken-

tuckians when I tell Dan's family how very sad we are for their loss.

## THE VERY BAD DEBT BOXSCORE

Mr. HELMS. Mr. President, at the close of business Friday, February 28, the Federal debt stood at \$5,349,937,360,942.68.

One year ago, February 28, 1996, the Federal debt stood at \$5,016,626,000,000.

Five years ago, February 28, 1992, the Federal debt stood at \$3,829,059,000,000.

Fifteen years ago, February 28, 1972, the Federal debt stood at \$426,934,000,000 which reflects a debt increase of nearly \$5 trillion—\$4,923,003,360,942.68—during the past 15 years.

CONGRATULATIONS TO GLADYS RAYMORE WILSON CELEBRATING HER 100th BIRTHDAY

Mr. ASHCROFT. Mr. President, I rise today to encourage my colleagues to join me in congratulating Gladys Raymore Wilson of Independence, MO, who will celebrate her 100th birthday on March 16, 1997. Gladys is a truly remarkable individual. She has witnessed many of the events that have shaped our Nation into the greatest the world has ever known. The longevity of Gladys' life has meant much more, however, to the many relatives and friends whose lives she has touched over the last 100 years.

Gladys' celebration of 100 years of life is a testament to me and all Missourians. Her achievements are significant and deserve to be recognized. I would like to join her many friends and relatives in wishing Gladys health and happiness in the future.

#### MESSAGES FROM THE PRESIDENT

Messages from the President of the United States were communicated to the Senate by Mr. Williams, one of his secretaries.

#### EXECUTIVE MESSAGES REFERRED

As in executive session the Presiding Officer laid before the Senate messages from the President of the United States submitting a treaty and sundry nominations which were referred to the appropriate committees.

(The nominations received today are printed at the end of the Senate proceedings.)

REPORT ON THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND CANADA WITH RESPECT TO SOCIAL SECURITY—MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT—PM 19

The PRESIDING OFFICER laid before the Senate the following message from the President of the United States, together with an accompanying report; which was referred to the Committee on Finance.

To the Congress of the United States:

Pursuant to section 233(e)(1) of the Social Security Act (the "Act"), as amended by the Social Security Amendments of 1977 (Public Law 95–216, 42 USC 433(e)(1)). I transmit herewith the Second Supplementary Agreement Amending the Agreement Between the Government of the United States of America and the Government of Canada with respect to Social Security (the Second Supplementary Agreement). The Second Supplementary Agreement, signed at Ottawa on May 28, 1996, is intended to modify certain provisions of the original United States-Canada Social Security Agreement signed at Ottawa March 11, 1981, which was amended once before by the Supplementary Agreement of May 10, 1983

The United States-Canada Social Security Agreement is similar in objective to the social security agreements with Austria, Belgium, Finland, France, Germany, Greece, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, The Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, and the United Kingdom. Such bilateral agreements provide for limited coordination between the U.S. and foreign social security systems to eliminate dual social security coverage and taxation, and to help prevent the loss of benefit protection that can occur when workers divide their careers between two countries.

The Second Supplementary Agreement provides Canada with a specific basis to enter into a mutual assistance arrangement with the United States. This enables each Governments' Social Security agency to assist the other in enhancing the administration of their respective foreign benefits programs. The Social Security Administration has benefited from a similar mutual assistance arrangement with the United Kingdom. The Second Supplementary Agreement will also make a number of minor revisions in the Agreement to take into account other changes in U.S. and Canadian law that have occurred in recent years.

The United States-Canada Social Security Agreement, as amended, would continue to contain all provisions mandated by section 233 and other provisions that I deem appropriate to carry out the provisions of section 233, pursuant to section 233(c)(4) of the Act.

I also transmit for the information of the Congress a report prepared by the Social Security Administration explaining the key points of the Second Supplementary Agreement, along with a paragraph-by-paragraph explanation of the effect of the amendments on the Agreement. Annexed to this report is the report required by section 233(e)(1) of the Act on the effect of the agreement, as amended, on income and expenditures of the U.S. Social Security program and the number of individuals affected by the amended Agreement. The Department of State and the Social Security Administration have recommended the Second Supplementary Agreement and related documents to me.

I commend the United States-Canada Second Supplementary Social Security Agreement and related documents.

WILLIAM J. CLINTON. THE WHITE HOUSE, *March 3, 1997.* 

### MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE RECEIVED DURING ADJOURNMENT

ENROLLED BILL SIGNED

Under the authority of the order of the Senate of January 7, 1997, the Secretary of the Senate, on February 28, 1997, during the adjournment of the Senate, received a message from the House of Representatives announcing that the Speaker has signed the following enrolled bills:

H.R. 668. An act to amend the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 to reinstate the Airport and Airway Trust Fund excise taxes, and for other purposes.

The enrolled bill was signed subsequently on February 28, during the adjournment of the Senate, by the President pro tempore [Mr. Thurmond].

# EXECUTIVE AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS

The following communications were laid before the Senate, together with accompanying papers, reports, and documents, which were referred as indicated:

EC-1249. A communication from the Acting Director of the Office of Surface Mining Reclamation and Enforcement, Department of the Interior, transmitting, pursuant to law, a rule entitled "Ohio Regulatory Program," received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Energy and Natural Resources.

EC-1250. A communication from the Executive Director of the District of Columbia Financial Responsibility and Management Assistant Authority, transmitting, pursuant to law, a report relative to the Metropolitan Police Department; to the Committee on Governmental Affairs.

EC-1251. A communication from the District of Columbia Auditor, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report entitled "Review and Analysis of the Fiscal Year 1997 Budget for the Office of Banking and Financial Institutions", to the Committee on Governmental Affairs.

EC-1252. A communication from the Director of Defense Procurement, Office of the Under Secretary of Defense, transmitting, pursuant to law, a rule entitled "Automatic Data Processing Equipment Leasing Costs" received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Armed Services.

EC-1253. A communication from the Under Secretary of Defense, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report concerning the Foreign Comparative Testing Program for fiscal year 1996; to the Committee on Armed Services.

EC-1254. A communication from the Director of the Office of Regulatory Management and Information, Environmental Protection Agency, transmitting, pursuant to law, six rules including a rule entitled "National Primary Drinking Water Regulations" (FRL-5689-9, 5591-5, 5699-5, 5698-4, 5692-3, 5696-2); to the Committee on Environment and Public Works.

EC-1255. A communication from the Chief of the Regulations Unit, Internal Revenue Service, Department of the Treasury, transmitting, pursuant to law, a report relative to Notice 97-21 received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Finance.

EC-1256. A communication from the Chief of the Regulations Unit of the Internal Revenue Service, Department of the Treasury, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report relative to Revenue Ruling 97-10 received on February 26, 1997; to the Committee on Finance.

EC-1257. A communication from the Chief Counsel of the Office of Foreign Assets Control, Department of the Treasury, transmiting, pursuant to law, a rule entitled "Narcotics Trafficking Sanctions Regulations" received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Banking, Housing, and Urban Affairs

EC-1258. A communication from the Assistant to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, transmitting, pursuant to law, a rule entitled "Membership of State Banking Institutions in the Federal Reserve System" received on February 28, 1997; to the Committee on Banking, Housing, and Urban Affairs.

EC-1259. A communication from the Managing Director of the Federal Housing Finance Board, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of salary rates for 1997; to the Committee on Banking, Housing, and Urban Affairs

EC-1260. A communication from the National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to directed fishing for pollock, received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1261. A communication from the National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to Atlantic Mackerel, (RIN0648-AJ06) received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1262. A communication from the Acting Director of the Office of Sustainable Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to directed fishing for pollock, received on February 26, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation

EC-1263. A communication from the Acting Director of the Office of Sustainable Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to directed fishing for flatfish, received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1264. A communication from the Director of the Office of Sustainable Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to king mackerel, received on March 3, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1265. A communication from the Director of the Office of Sustainable Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to scallop fishery, received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1266. A communication from the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant

to law, the report of a rule relative to the Western Pacific bottomfish fishery, received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1267. A communication from the Director of the Office of Sustainable Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to other flatfish, received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1268. A communication from the Director of the Office of Sustainable Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to the Northeast Multispecies Fishery Management Plan, received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1269. A communication from the Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to the Northeast Multispecies Fishery Management Plan, (RIN0648-AJ34) received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1270. A communication from the Deputy Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to Fishery Management Plans, (RIN0648-XX80) received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1271. A communication from the Acting Deputy Assistant Administrator for Fisheries, National Marine Fisheries Service, National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Department of Commerce, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to the Exclusive Economic Zone Off Alaska, (RIN0648-AJ05) received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1272. A communication from the General Counsel, Department of Transportation, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report sixteen rules including one rule relative to Class E Airspace, (RIN2120-AF93, AA64, AA66, ZZ04) received on February 27, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1273. A communication from the General Counsel, Department of Transportation, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of a rule relative to seafarers, (RIN2115-AF26) received on March 3, 1997; to the Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation.

EC-1274. A communication from the Acting Secretary of Labor, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report relative to the Regular Trade Adjustment Assistant Program; to the Committee on Finance.

EC-1275. A committee from the Executive Director of the Committee for Purchase from People Who Are Blind or Severely Disabled, transmitting, pursuant to law, the report of additions to the Procurement List received on March 3, 1997; to the Committee on Governmental Affairs.

EC-1276. A communication from the Administrator of the Food Safety and Inspection Service, Department of Agriculture, transmitting, pursuant to law, a rule entitled "Poultry Inspection" (RIN0583-AB91) received on March 3, 1997; to the Committee on Agriculture, Nutrition, and Forestry.

EC-1277. A communication from the Director of the Office of Regulations Management,